
           

WABASHA PLANNING COMMISSION
June 11, 2024 6:00 PM

Join us via zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84713043561 

Commissioner Burke will be joining via zoom from 607 Beryl Street, Redondo Beach, CA 90277
 

MEETING AGENDA 
           

1) Call to Order
 

  

2) Approval of Minutes- May 14, 2024
 

3) Changes or Additions to Agenda
 

  

4) Public Comment
 

  

5) Public Hearings   

a) CUP - 380 Skyline Dr Accessory Garage with Water and Sewer
b) Rezone - 1600 5th Grant Blvd from R1 to Industrial
c) Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Updates

 
6) Old Business

 
  

7) New Business
 

  

8) Board of Adjustment Business
 

  

9) Other Business
 

  

10) Next Regular Meeting Date - July 9th, 2024
 

  

11) Adjourn   

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84713043561


   
Planning Commission 2)        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes- May 14, 2024
DEPARTMENT: Administration

TITLE:
Approval of Minutes- May 14, 2024
 

PURPOSE:

Attachments
Minutes 



D R A F T
WABASHA PLANNING COMMISSION

May 14, 2024 6:00 PM
 

MEETING MINUTES 
  
Commission Members:

Tim Wallerich, Chair
Scott Durand
Ozzie Goodman
Richard Heffner
 

 

Sara Carrels
Sharon Burke
Jeff Sulla
  

 

Present:  Scott Durand; Sharon Burke; Jeff Sulla; Richard Heffner; Ozzie Goodman 

Absent:  Chair Tim Wallerich; Sara Carrels 

Also Present: Kristi Trisko, Contracted City Planner; Wendy Busch, City Clerk 

 

 

               
1) Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Goodman at 6:01 p.m.    
 

 
2) Approval of Minutes
 

a) Planning Commission Minutes 4-9-24
Commissioner Burke requested a clarification to Page 5. She stated that she had suggested inviting
Commissioner Durand to join a committee that will be reviewing the exterior architectural design
plans. 

  

 
  Motion made by Jeff Sulla, seconded by Scott Durand to approve the meeting minutes, as amended.  

  Vote: 5 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other:  Chair Tim Wallerich (ABSENT) 
  Sara Carrels (ABSENT) 

 
3) Changes or Additions to Agenda



3) Changes or Additions to Agenda
There were no changes or additions to the agenda. 
 

 
4) Public Comment

There was no public comment. The public comment period was closed at 6:05 p.m. 
 

 
5) Public Hearings

There were no public hearings.  
 

 
6) Old Business

There was no old business. 
 
7) New Business
 

a) Miscellaneous Subdivision and Zoning Ordinance Updates
City Planner Trisko requested clarity relating to ordinance language relating to detached accessory
buildings, stating that there have been several requests to add restrooms in garages. She reviewed
concerns about allowing this and summarized discussions with City staff.  

City Planner Trisko reviewed options for Planning Commission action:
1)  Make no changes to the current language, allowing guest cottages with a Conditional Use
Permit.  
2)  Revise the ordinance language to allow restroom facilities in accessory buildings, with
restrictions. 

Commissioners discussed the pros and cons of allowing restrooms to be added to accessory
buildings. Commissioner Heffner commented regarding a structure that was constructed differently
from the one that was proposed. City Planner Trisko and City Clerk Busch discussed the CUP
approval process. The challenges of regulating short-term rental housing uses were discussed. City
Clerk Busch discussed the benefits of accessory dwelling units.  

Commissioners expressed agreement with the current CUP process for all requests, evaluating each
request as if the structure could be used as a residential unit, including looking at parking, access,
utilities, and other considerations. City Clerk Busch commented regarding legal considerations. City
Planner Trisko discussed how other communities regulate these types of uses and stated that she will
compile a checklist and conditions of approval. She recommended requiring that the accessory
structure be owned by the primary property owner, to prevent lot splitting. She also suggested
requiring a new CUP if any major modifications are made. The differences between a CUP and an
IUP were discussed. Utilities were discussed. City Planner Trisko discussed upcoming requests and
stated that she will present checklist items during a future meeting. 

City Planner Trisko reviewed a request for a professional daycare center in a Highway Commercial
zoning district. She reviewed recommendations for daycare uses, noting that State licensing is
required. Commissioners expressed agreement with the recommendations, and City Planner Trisko
stated that a public hearing will be scheduled.

Commissioner Burke commented that there is a State moratorium on supervised living facilities,
referencing MN Statutes 245d. City Planner Trisko indicated that she will research this definition
and suggested a language revision referencing State licensing. 

  



City Planner Trisko discussed retail uses in Industrial zoning districts and referenced the current use
chart. She recommended language revisions in this regard, and Commissioners expressed agreement
with the suggestions.

City Planner Trisko commented that accessory apartments and guest cottages are not currently
allowed in the Downtown zoning district (TDZ). She discussed options and recommended allowing
these types of uses with a CUP. City Clerk Busch provided current examples. City Planning Trisko
discussed current trends in terms of allowing residents to live where they work.  
 

 
8) Board of Adjustment Business

There was no Board of Adjustment business. 
 
9) Other Business
 
10) Next Regular Meeting Date - June 11, 2024

 
 
11) Adjourn
 
  Motion made by Richard Heffner, seconded by Scott Durand to adjourn the meeting. The meeting

adjourned at 6:53 p.m.  

  Vote: 5 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

  Other:  Chair Tim Wallerich (ABSENT) 
  Sara Carrels (ABSENT) 

 
 

Respectfully submitted by:_____________________________
Wendy Busch, City Clerk

_____________________________
Adopted Date



   
Planning Commission 5) a)        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
SUBJECT: CUP - 380 Skyline Dr Accessory Garage with Water and Sewer
DEPARTMENT: Administration

TITLE:
CUP - 380 Skyline Dr Accessory Garage with Water and Sewer

PURPOSE:
Please see the attached application and staff report provided by City Planner Kristi Trisko.

Attachments
Application 
Staff Memo 





















 
 
 

 
 

 

H:\WABASHA_CI_MN\T61115593\CUP-IUP\2024\Fairchild Guest Cottage\Staff Report\fairchild staff report.docx 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: May 29, 2024 
 

To: Wabasha Planning Commission 
 

From: Kristi Trisko, AICP, PMP 
 Wabasha Consultant Planner 
 

Subject: Steven and Erin Fairchild Guest Cottage CUP – 380 Skyline Drive 
 

  
Owner/Applicant: Steven and Erin Fairchild 
Location: 380 Skyline Drive, Lot 7 Coffee Mill 

Point Subdivision 
Staff Report 
 

Zone: R1 (Low Density Residential) 
Land Use: Low Density Residential 
Accessory Setbacks:  
Front: Behind principal building 
Side/Rear: 3 Feet 

 

Details of the request: 
 

The owners would like to construct a detached guest 
cottage/garage along the south side of their home for 
additional garage and storage space with a restroom. 
Placing water and sanitary services into a detached building  
changes the use from a garage to a guest cottage and requires a conditional 
use permit.  
 
Square footage breakdown for the garage space is below: 

1st Floor: 1,920 sq. ft. (garage, storage, restroom) 

2nd Floor: 576 sq. ft. (storage) mezzanine for storage 
Height: 16’ walls – less than 35’ in total height. 

 
Access: The owners will access their garage from Skyline Drive with an additional 
approach to the shed, not determined whether hard surface or not. As the parcel 
is not at an intersection, a sight visibility triangle will not be needed for this building. 
 

Utility Extension Summary:   Pat Mueller, City Utilities, reviewed the CUP 
application as it is proposed to extend water and sewer services from owners’ 
home to the detached garage. He is working with the owners and has no 



Page: 2 
 

H:\WABASHA_CI_MN\T61115593\CUP-IUP\2024\Fairchild Guest Cottage\Staff Report\fairchild staff report.docx 

 

concerns with the private extension of utilities from their home to the garage. Pat would like to see oil trap 
separate in detached garages, if possible, for all future projects.  However, as I spoke with the owner, there 
is no storm sewer within Skyline Drive and the street does not include curb or catch basins.  The garage 
would drain into the yard.  The owner is only intending to use this garage to wash vehicles as he works in a 
truck center where all mechanical work that would involve oils and other materials would be completed.  In 
my opinion, an oil trap separator is not necessary for this location.  
 
Tony Johnson, Public Works Director, reviewed the CUP application and had no concerns with the application. 
 
Emergency Agencies: Wabasha Fire, Ambulance and Police, had no concerns with the application.  
 
Surrounding Property Uses and Zoning: The surrounding property uses to the north and south of 380 Skyline 
Drive is residential and are also zoned R1 (Low Density Residential). A detached garage is consistent with the 
zoning and character for this neighborhood as the home just north of this lot also has a detached garage.   
 
Neighborhood Notification: All property owners within 350 feet of this property were notified 
within ten days of the public hearing and published in the paper on Tuesday, May 28, 2024, stating 
that a public hearing would be held on June 11, 2024, for this conditional use permit request. 

 
Recommended Conditions: 
 

1. Change in the square feet or setbacks of the building from the submiƩed CUP/IUP building will require a 
modificaƟon to the CUP. 

2. Ownership for the home and guest coƩage must be the same or a modificaƟon to the CUP is required. 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
Below are sample resolutions for both approval and denial which may be used by the Planning Commission 
in their decision. 

 
Sample resolution for approval 

  
Resolution _______ 

CUP for a Guest Cottage 
 

WHEREAS, the property addressed 380 Skyline Drive is zoned R-1 which allows a guest cottage as a 
conditional use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed property has a land use designation of Low Density Residential; and 
 
WHEREAS, the use will not alter the character of the neighborhood where the neighbor to the north also has 
a detached garage and all the lots in Coffee Mill Point are between 3-5 acres in size, allowing for additional 
garages between homes while still maintaining distance between them; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission provides the following findings: 
 



Page: 3 
 

H:\WABASHA_CI_MN\T61115593\CUP-IUP\2024\Fairchild Guest Cottage\Staff Report\fairchild staff report.docx 

 

1. Allowing a guest cottage use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort 
or general welfare of the city;  
 

2. The proposed guest cottage will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property 
values within the neighborhood; 

3. The establishment of a guest cottage will not impede the normal and orderly development or use of 
the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 

4. There is adequate public utilities for allowed use, and access to Skyline Drive for the proposed use; 
5. Adequate ingress and egress will not increase traffic congestion on Skyline Drive;  
6. The proposed guest cottage use and location conforms to the applicable regulations  of  the district in 

which it is located; 
7. Placing the guest cottage at the proposed setbacks allows for a minimum of 10 feet of space between 

their home and a minimum of 20 feet from the Skyline Drive R.O.W.; 
8. The proposed building will not require substantial filling and grading; 
9. Use does not obstruct scenic views from public rights-of-way or existing residential uses; 
10. The owners’ lot, 380 Skyline Drive, is adequately sized for the proposed building, meeting all the 

minimum setback requirements for an accessory building in the Wabasha Zoning District, R-1. 
11. The proposed use is consistent with the City’s comprehensive land use plan. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the Planning Commission approves the Conditional Use Permit 
for a guest cottage at 380 Skyline Drive 

 
 
Sample resolution for denial 

 
Resolution _______ 

CUP for a Guest Cottage 
 

WHEREAS, the property addressed 380 Skyline Drive is zoned Low Density Residential (R-1); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a Guest Cottage; and 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission provides the following findings: [insert findings as 
deemed appropriate] 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLBED, the Planning Commission denies the Conditional Use 
Permit for a guest cottage as requested by the applicants Steven and Erin Fairchild located at 380 
Skyline Drive.  
 
 



kristitr
Dimension

kristitr
Text Box
Approx. 20' from ROW

kristitr
Callout
The 12' Open Porch will not be included in the garage



kristitr
Callout
12' Open Porch is not Included to save additional trees in the side yard.









   
Planning Commission 5) b)        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
SUBJECT: Rezone - 1600 5th Grant Blvd from R1 to Industrial
DEPARTMENT: Administration

TITLE:
Rezone - 1600 5th Grant Blvd from R1 to Industrial

PURPOSE:
Please see the attached staff report and application for rezone.

Attachments
Application 
Staff Report 







 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: May 29, 2024 
 

To: Wabasha Planning Commission 
 

From: Kristi Trisko, AICP, PMP 
 Wabasha Consultant Planner 
 

Subject: Carrels Properties – Rezone from RC and R1 to Industrial 
 

 
Owner/Applicant: Kohner Sand and Gravel Company 
Developer: City of Wabasha 
Location: 1501 and 1600 5th Grant Boulevard 

West 
 
Rezone Amendment: Kohner Sand and Gravel and the City 
of Wabasha have requested a zone change from R1 (Low 
Density Residential) and RC (Residential Conservancy) to 
Industrial on their two parcels located on 1501 and 1600 5th 
Grant Boulevard West, PIN # R27.00004.00 and 
R27.00005.03.    The parcels contain 26.75 Acres. 
 
Current Zoning:  R1 (Low Density Res.) and RC (Res. 

Conservancy) 
 
Land Use Designation: Industrial 

 
Zoning Exhibit      Land Use Exhibit 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page: 2 
 

 

 

 
 
Legal Descriptions: 
Parcel ID:  R27.00004.00 
Address: 1501 5TH GRANT BLVD W 
Deeded Acres: 13.60 
Description: Sect-30 Twp-111 Range-010 13.60 AC EX HWY ESMT, OUT LOTS 4 & 5 
Parcel ID: R27.00005.03 
Address: 1600 5TH GRANT BLVD W 
Deeded Acres: 13.15 
Description: Sect-30 Twp-111 Range-010 13.15 AC EX SWLY 12.85 AC, OUT LOT 6 
 
Total Acres: 26.75 
 
Surrounding Land Use: The Project Site 
is bounded by the Mississippi River to 
the north and agricultural land to the 
east and west. 5th Grant Boulevard West 
(Wabasha County Road 59), which 
borders the Project Site to the south, 
provides connection to downtown 
Wabasha and U.S. Highway 61. 
 
Current Land Use: The two parcels 
comprised of vacant woodland and 
appear to have been used for the 
dumping or storage of scrap metal, 
construction material, and various 
vehicle parts. According to historic aerial 
imagery—which is available for limited 
years from 1939 to the present—gravel 
mining occurred on the Project Site,  
beginning in earnest in 1949 and continuing into the early 1970s. By 2010, gravel mining had ended, and 
successional trees have reclaimed the filled gravel pits. 
 
Project Description/ Rezone for Rezone:  The City of Wabasha, in cooperation with the Wabasha Port 
Authority, is proposing to construct a commercial port facility (“Wabasha Barge Facility”) at Upper 
Mississippi River mile 760 in Wabasha, Minnesota. The project site is located on tax parcels R27.00004.00 
and R27.00005.03 within the City of Wabasha, Wabasha County, Minnesota (Section 30, Township 111N, 
Range 010W). These parcels are presently privately owned, and the city anticipates purchasing the requisite 
area to house the facility from a willing seller prior to construction activities. 
 
The 26.8-acre site (“Study Area,” “Project Site” and rezone requested area) would house the Wabasha Barge 
Facility on approximately 8.2 and would facilitate the transfer of materials, including dredge material and 
other commodities, from river barges to trucks for transport to off-site facilities. The City of Wabasha would 
own the barge facility site and contract out the port operations and transportation of materials. The city 
does not currently anticipate expanding the project beyond the proposed 8.2 acres, although that decision 
will be revisited at a future time if warranted. 
  



Page: 3 
 

 

 

Shoreland Overlay Zone:  The parcels are also located in 
the S-1 and S-2 Shoreland Overlay Zones. Shoreland 
Overlay Zoning Ordinances typically contain a variety of 
provisions that guide land development and activity in 
shorelands with the goal of protecting surface water 
quality, near-shore habitat, and shoreland aesthetics. S-1 
and S-2 Shoreland Overlay Zones are intended to provide 
standards for shoreland areas within the city that are 
primarily undeveloped. The proposed development will 
comply with all the standards within the Shoreland Overlay 
Zone.   
 
Floodway:  The parcels are located within the FEMA 100-
Year floodplain.  
 

Neighborhood Notification: All property owners within 350 
feet of this property were notified within ten days of the 
public hearing and published in the paper on Tuesday, May 
28, 2024, stating that a public hearing would be held on June 
11, 2024, for this conditional use permit request. 
 
Rezone Analysis:   
 
The proposed development of a barge port facility for 
these two parcels is consistent with the current Wabasha 
Comprehensive Plan (2016-2035), last amended July 6, 
2021. The Comprehensive Plan designates the future land 
use of the project site as “Industrial” and discusses 
Wabasha’s unique location and opportunity for development of a river port facility that would be used for 
commercial purposes.  
Of the 26.8- acre Study Area, approximately 8.2 acres would be used and developed for the proposed 
project, leaving the remaining area in its current undeveloped state.  
 
The preferred project site is zoned RC (Residential Conservancy) and R1 (Low Density Residential). A public 
hearing to rezone these parcels is scheduled for June 11, 2024, with a final review by City Council scheduled 
for July 2, 2024.  Prior to the construction of the barge terminal, a Major Traffic Generator CUP (conditional 
use permit) will be necessary for the expected heavy truck traffic that will be generated by the use.   
 
The properties are within a Shoreland Overlay Zone of S-1 adjacent to the Mississippi River and S-2 
throughout the rest of the project area.  The proposed development will comply with all the standards 
within the Shoreland Overlay Zone.   
 
The two parcels are also within the Floodway and 100-year floodplain.  To develop the site as proposed, the 
City will dredge a portion of the Mississippi River for barge traffic to access this barge facility. A portion of 
that material, once dewatered would be used as fill to elevate the proposed project’s access road and 
facilities out of the 100-year floodplain.  
 



Page: 4 
 

 

 

Since the City’s top priority is ensuring the safety of Wabasha residents, to utilize the Carrels properties 
allows for the truck transport of dredged material directly to County and MnDOT highway truck routes, 
avoiding significant truck traffic through residential areas of the city, and minimizing the safety concerns of 
Wabasha residents with zero impacts to surrounding residential uses and no residential uses along the truck 
route.   
 
It is staff’s opinion that this property, located adjacent to 5th Grant Boulevard (County Road 59) a designated 
truck route and near Highway 61, and across the street from the major industrial properties within the City 
of Wabasha makes this land use compatible with the current zoning pattern and uses and conforms to the 
approved Land Use Plan amended in 2021 as continued industrial land uses.  
 
Utility and Street Commission Comments:  Pat Mueller, Utility Commission and Tony Johnson, Street 
Commission have no comments or concerns with this application.   
 
Emergency Agencies Comments: Wabasha Fire, Ambulance and Police, have no concerns with the 
application.  
 
City Engineering Comments: Brian Malm has no concerns with the application.  
 
Lucas Youngsma, MnDNR Comments: TBD 
 
Hearings and Neighborhood Notices: 
Amending the Ordinance: Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance (text or map) may be initiated by the City 
Council, the Planning Commission, or by an affected property owner for the purpose of carrying out the 
policies and goals of the Comprehensive Plan and promoting the public health, safety, morals, and general 
welfare of the community.” (305.04 Subd. 7).  While the Planning Commission holds the public hearing, City 
Council adopts all ordinances (and modifications to existing ordinances).  All ordinances must be heard by 
City Council at least two times (City Charter Section 4.05).  The City Council’s introduction to these changes 
will occur at their July 1, 2024, meeting if recommended by the Planning Commission.  The final approval 
may occur at the August 6, 2024 meeting.   Staff suggests that the Planning Commission consider findings of 
fact to support or deny the proposed changes in their recommendation to City Council.  The following 
contains draft language for such a purpose.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:   Below are sample resolutions for both approval and denial which may be 
used by the Planning Commission in their decision. 

 
Sample Motions to Recommend Requested Changes 

 
Whereas, the 2021 Land Use Plan calls for industrial uses in this area and the requested Industrial zone is 
compatible with this land use; and 
 
Whereas, 5th Grant Boulevard North/ County Road 59 is a designated truck route and the intended barge 
terminal use would utilize this roadway as their haul route and not disturb any adjacent residential homes 
within 100 feet of the roadway and;  
 
Whereas, the surrounding existing industrial uses and zoning to south and east are compatible with the 
requested Industrial zone, and;  
 



Page: 5 
 

 

 

Whereas, the request to allow for a barge terminal use for this property is consistent with the goals and 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, The Planning Commission recommends to the City Council the amendment to Section 305 
of City Code, rezoning Parcels R27.00004.00 and R27.00005.03 from R-1 and RC to Industrial. 

 
 

 
 
Sample Motions for Denial 

 

WHEREAS, the properties of 1501 and 1600 5th Grant Boulevard are zoned R-1 (Low Density 
Residential) and RC (Residential Conservancy); and have submitted a request for Industrial; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission provides the following findings: {insert findings as deemed appropriate} 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLBED, the Planning Commission recommends denial of the Industrial 
Rezoning  by the applicant Kohner Sand at 1501 and 1600 5th Grant Boulevard West.  

 
 





   
Planning Commission 5) c)        
Meeting Date: 06/11/2024  
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Updates
DEPARTMENT: Administration

TITLE:
Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Updates
 

PURPOSE:
Please see attached staff memo for proposed zoning ordinance changes. 

Attachments
Staff Memo 



 
 
 

 
 

 

H:\WABASHA_CI_MN\T61115593\Ordinances\June 2024 Misc Ordinance Changes\June 2024 PC Memo.docx 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: May 23, 2024 
 
To: Wabasha Planning Commission 
 
From: Kristi Trisko, AICP, PMP 
 Wabasha Consultant Planner 
 
Subject: Recommended Changes to Section 162.060 USE CHART 
 

§ 162.060 USE CHART.  Recommended changes are underlined.   

 
It was recommended by staff and the Planning Commission on May 14, 2024 that the following items be 
amended in Section 162.060 Use Chart and 162.061 Definitions. 

          
 Zones 

Use RC RRLA RRGT R-l R-2 TDC GC HC I 

RESIDENTIAL USES 
Accessory apartment I P I I I C    
Guest cottage C P C C C C    

RETAIL USES 
Commercial retail up to 1,500 s.f.     C P P P P 

Commercial retail >than 1,500 s.f.      P P P P 
INSTITUTIONAL USES 

Family day care P P P P P     
Group day care     P C P P  

 
§ 162.061 USE DEFINITIONS. 
 
Supervised living facility. A facility in which there is provided supervision, lodging, meals and in 
accordance with provisions of rules of the Department of Human Services and as defined by State 
Statue, counseling and developmental habilitative or rehabilitative services to five or more persons who 
are developmentally disabled, chemically dependent, adult mentally ill, or physically disabled. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page: 2 

H:\WABASHA_CI_MN\T61115593\Ordinances\June 2024 Misc Ordinance Changes\June 2024 PC Memo.docx 

 

 
Accessory Apartments and Guest Cottage Uses:  Accessory Apartments and Guest Cottage should be 
conditionally allowed in the TDC Zone as we have several properties in the TDC zone where the owners 
and renter live on the lot so this change would bring these uses into conformity, this is a compatible use 
within the TDC District, and mixed commercial and residential uses should be allowed in this zoning 
district.   
 
Commercial uses in the Industrial Zone:  Commercial retail uses both over and under 1,500 square feet 
should be an allowed in the Industrial Zone, because we also allow professional office which is a similar 
scale to retail uses, we have several retail uses within this zone so we would bring these uses into 
conformity, and commercial retail is a compatible use for the Industrial zone located adjacent to larger 
roads and typically considered a more intense use.   
 
Day Care:  A Group Daycare or professional daycare is a compatible use within the Highway Commercial 
Zone as most HC zoned parcels are visible from Highway 61 and accessible by an arterial or collector 
roadway making them easier to locate and use as parents drop off and pick up their children daily, the 
use fits the intensity typically found in the HC zone, and is compatible with the other allowed and 
conditional uses within the HC zone.  Family Day Care, or in-home daycare with less than ten children 
are also recommended as a permitted use for the RC, RRLA, and RRGT residential zones as in-home 
daycare should be an allowed use in all low-density residential neighborhoods.  Both of these uses are 
regulated and licensed by the State of Minnesota.   
 
Supervised Living Facility – The Planning Commission asked that I look up the State’s definition for this 
use to make sure that the number of people who can be part of this type of use has not changed.  I have 
updated this use to follow the State Statute’s definition adding the phase, “as defined by State Statue” 
so we don’t have to change it again.   

  
Minnesota Administrative Rules: 4665.0100 DEFINITIONS.  
"Supervised living facility" means a facility in which there is provided supervision, lodging, meals 
and in accordance with provisions of rules of the Department of Human Services, counseling and 
developmental habilitative or rehabilitative services to five or more persons who are developmentally 
disabled, chemically dependent, adult mentally ill, or physically disabled. 

Meeting Notification:  A brief summary of these ordinance changes was published in the paper on 
Tuesday, May 28, 2024, stating that a public hearing would be held on June 11, 2024.   

Planning Commission Action: After the hearing, if the Planning Commissioners believe that the 
amended ordinances are ready for final review, I recommend that the Commissioners forward the 
revised Use Chart to City Council for their consideration. 

CUP/IUP Checklist items:  Per comments received from May’s Planning Commission Meeting, I have 
added the following INTERNAL checklist items as part of my review and recommended conditions for 
each CUP/IUP that is submitted.   

1. Change in the square feet or setbacks of the building from the submiƩed CUP/IUP building will 
require a modificaƟon to the CUP/IUP. 

2. Ownership must stay the same in guest coƩages and accessory apartments, or a modificaƟon to 
the CUP is required. 

3. A catch basin must be installed for all detached garages to manage oil and grease spills prior to 
entering the street. 

 


	Agenda
	AI 6034 Approval of Minutes- May 14, 2024
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 6009 CUP - 380 Skyline Dr Accessory Garage with Water and Sewer
	       ATT_Application
	       ATT_Staff Memo
	AI 6010 Rezone - 1600 5th Grant Blvd from R1 to Industrial
	       ATT_Application
	       ATT_Staff Report
	AI 6011 Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Updates
	       ATT_Staff Memo

